
SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL

Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education

Date: Tuesday, 28th February, 2017
Time: 2.30 pm

Place: Unitarians Meeting House, Grange Gardens, Southend-on-Sea, SS1 2LL
Contact: Robert Harris 

Email: committeesection@southend.gov.uk 

A G E N D A

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Minutes of the meeting held on 28th September 2016 and Matters Arising 
(Pages 1 - 6)
Minutes attached.

4  SACRE Membership Update 
Report of the SACRE Clerk to follow

5  SACRE Annual Report 2015/16 (Pages 7 - 18)
Annual Report from SACRE Advisor attached.

6  SACRE Advisors Update Report (Pages 19 - 22)
Report attached.

7  Review of Locally Agreed Syllabus 
Verbal report (no papers)

8  NASACRE Current Developments 
Verbal update (no papers)

9  Date and time of next meeting 

Members:

Ryan (Chair), Cllr M Davidson, Cllr F Evans, Cllr L Davies, Cllr M Borton, Cllr J Ware-Lane, 
Cllr D McGlone, Mrs T Green, Ms P Draycott, M Buckley, Ms L Hopkinson, Werrett, Werrett, 
S Tinning, Mrs J Barnett, Mistry, Dr Khokha, Mr G Licence, Mrs K Christopher and 
Mr T Bharj

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTHEND-ON-SEA BOROUGH COUNCIL

Meeting of Standing Advisory Council on Religious Education

Date: Wednesday, 28th September, 2016
Place: Committee Room 4 - Civic Suite

Present: 
Councillors M Davidson and F Evans, 
Mr K Ryan, Mr S Tinning, Mrs M Larkin, Ms P Draycott, 
Mr G Licence, Dr Khokha, Mrs Y Werrett, Mr B Werrett, Ms J Barnett, 

In Attendance: Ms F Neil (Advisor), Mr R Harris (SBC) and Mr B Martin (SBC) and 
Ms K Christopher (REToday).

Start/End Time: 2.30  - 4.20 pm

1  Election of Chair and Vice-Chair 

Resolved:

1. That Mr Kevin Ryan be appointed Chair of SACRE. 

2. That Councillor Evans be appointed Vice-Chair of SACRE.

2  Apologies for Absence 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Ware-Lane, McGlone and 
Davies (no substitutes).  Apologies were also received from Ms L Hopkinson, Mr M 
Buckley, Mr C Pegler, Ms K Mistry and Mr J Greenstein.

3  Declarations of Interest 

There were no declarations of interest at this meeting.

4  Minutes of Previous Meeting 

Resolved:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 13th July 2016 be confirmed as a correct 
record.

5  SACRE Member Training: Statutory Duties Dealing with Determinations 

The SACRE undertook a training session covering ‘What is an Effective SACRE’ as 
part of their development needs identified through the RETool self-evaluation form 
and included on the SACRE Action Plan 2015/16 (Action Point 1a).  The training 
session was delivered by Kate Christopher from RE Today and covered the 
following areas:

 The Law regarding RE;
 The RE Curriculum;
 The 21st Century World;

1

3



The SACRE asked a number of questions which were responded to covering the 
RE curriculum and academies and SACRE’s role in the provision of RE in schools.

Members reflected on the training and discussed the Southend Agreed Syllabus 
and the 2011 Census.  The SACRE was informed that an interim ‘light-touch’ 
review of the Agreed Syllabus would be undertaken at a future meeting of the 
SACRE/Agreed Syllabus Conference and the Census 2011 data would be 
reviewed to ensure that the SACRE reflects the make-up of the borough.

The SACRE Advisor reported that further work would take place during next school 
term to identify gaps in the provision of RE in schools.

Resolved:

1. That a further discussion on ‘what makes an effective SACRE’ take place at the 
next meeting of the SACRE.

6  SACRE Membership 

The SACRE Clerk provided an update on the SACRE membership.

The SACRE was informed that Mr Clive Pegler had recently retired from the 
SACRE and also that this was the last meeting for Mrs Marilyn Larkin.

Resolved:

1. That the update on the SACRE membership be noted and the Inter-Faith Forum 
be approached for representatives to fill the current vacancies in the ‘other faiths’ 
category.

2. That the deepest thanks and appreciation be extended to Mr Clive Pegler and 
Mrs Marilyn Larkin for their valuable contributions to the SACRE and wish them all 
the best for the future.

7  SACRE Advisors Report 

The SACRE received and considered the Advisors report, which covered the 
following matters (items 8, 9, 11, 12 and 13 on the agenda):

 NASACRE’s consultation on their revised Constitution;
 The Tell MAMA Report;
 Accord Coalition Annual Award 2017;
 Improving Religious Literacy APPG report;
 Post-Brexit Britain;

The report also presented an update on the matters that have been progressed 
since the last meeting and also contained the 2016/17 action plan and priorities.

Members discussed the various matters and recommendations outlined in the 
Advisors report which are covered in items elsewhere on the agenda.

2



The SACRE noted that the Advisor had started to analyse the data from academies 
in the borough on the status of RE in their schools.  The data will inform the SACRE 
of the status of their RE, the Syllabus they are following and what their provision is 
for Collective Worship.  Once the work had been completed the information would 
be presented to the SACRE for discussion.

Resolved:

That the report be noted (see separate agenda items below for the specific 
resolutions).

8  NASACRE Consultation on Revised Constitution 

The SACRE received proposed revised NASACRE constitution.

The Clerk advised that the constitution was for NASACRE to approve but they were 
seeking the views of SACRE’s nationally before adoption.  The SACRE supported 
the revised constitution and made no comments or suggested additions/changes.

Resolved:

That the NASACRE revised constitution be supported.

9  Tell MAMA Report 

The SACRE received and considered the Executive summary of the Tell MAMA 
Annual Report which highlights crime against Muslims in the UK.  Of note for 
SACRE was that 11% of attacks were in places of education.  The SACRE 
discussed the importance that head teachers, teachers and the safeguarding leads 
in schools were trained to deal with Islamophobia and anti-Muslim hate.  The full 
report is available at tellmamauk.org/wp-
content/uploads/pdf/tell_mama_2015_annual_report.pdf.

The Advisor made reference to the Strictly RE Conference, RE Networks and the 
Diversity and Difference programme and engagement with Holocaust Education 
which support and address the priorities within the ‘Tell MAMA Annual Report’.

The SACRE suggested that the findings and proposals contained in the Tell MAMA 
report are raised with schools and other organisations, e.g. Inter-Faith Forum.  
SACRE noted that the Advisor would be attending the Inter-Faith Forum on behalf 
of the SACRE in order to raise awareness and support community cohesion.

Resolved:

1. That the findings and recommendations of the Tell MAMA Annual Report 2015 
be noted.

2. That SACRE continue to encourage and provide opportunities for schools, 
teachers, etc to attend a range of Conferences / training, etc (including the Respect 
for All and NATRE Annual Conference) which support teachers and pupils in 
building community cohesion and the provision of high quality teaching.

3



10  School Governors Responsibility for RE 

The SACRE received two guidance documents on the provision and training of 
teachers of religious education issued by the Religious Education Council of 
England and Wales.  The guidance is aimed at the governing bodies of both 
primary and secondary schools and draws attention to the findings and 
recommendations of the Religious Education The Truth Unmasked report on the 
outcomes of the recent inquiry held by the All Party Parliamentary Group for RE 
(APPG).  The full report can be accessed at 
www.religiouseducationcouncil.org.uk/appg/news/2013-03-18/appg-re-final-report-
the-truth-unmasked.

Resolved:

1. That the guidance on the provision and training of teachers of RE for primary and 
secondary school governing bodies be noted.

2. That the APPG recommendations be commended to the primary and secondary 
school governor bodies in the borough and some work be undertaken by SACRE to 
support governors respond to the recommendations.

11  Accord Coalition Annual Award 2017 

The SACRE received details of the Accord Coalition Inclusivity Award.  SACRE’s 
are being invited to submit nominations for work which promotes inclusivity and the 
growth of mutual understanding, especially on the grounds of religion and ethnicity.

The SACRE noted that the range of programmes, such as the Diversity and 
Difference programme, would meet the criteria (inclusion, cohesion and mutual 
understanding between different religions and beliefs) of the Accord Coalition 
Award / accreditation.

Further details and evidence was included in the Advisors report at agenda item 7 
above.

Resolved:

That the potential to apply to the Accord Coalition Inclusivity Award 2017 be 
investigated by the SACRE Advisor, supported by the Clerk, and if the criteria is 
met an application be made on behalf of the SACRE.

12  Improving Religious Literacy 

The SACRE received and considered an executive summary of the All Party 
Parliamentary Group on Religious Education (APPG/RE) report on Religious 
Literacy.  Further details on the implications and recommendations of the APPG 
report were covered under the Advisors report at agenda item 7 above.

The SACRE discussed the APPG/RE report and suggested that the next meeting 
should hold a session around society and ethics and RE as a subject.

Resolved:

4

http://www.religiouseducationcouncil.org.uk/appg/news/2013-03-18/appg-re-final-report-the-truth-unmasked
http://www.religiouseducationcouncil.org.uk/appg/news/2013-03-18/appg-re-final-report-the-truth-unmasked


1. That the SACRE discuss further at the next meeting society and ethics and what 
RE is as a subject.

2. That the SACRE funds the Respect for All Conference and funds teachers to 
attend the Strictly RE Conference. 

13  Post-Brexit Britain: Building Respectful Schools and Societies 

The SACRE received and considered an open letter to the Secretary of State for 
Education concerning the need to promote Citizenship, RE and PSHE in schools to 
build respectful schools and societies in post-Brexit Britain.  Further details are 
covered in the Advisors report at agenda item 7.

The SACRE discussed in general the implications of Brexit on society and 
supported the suggestions contained in the open letter and emphasised the vital 
role of citizenship, RE and PSHE has in the spiritual, moral, social and cultural 
education of young people.  

Resolved:

That the open letter to the Secretary of State for Education concerning the 
promotion of citizenship, RE and PSHE in schools be supported.

14  Date and time of next meeting 

To be advised.

5



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 12

BOROUGH OF SOUTHEND-ON-SEA 

STANDING ADVISORY COUNCIL ON RELIGIOUS EDUCATION (S.A.C.R.E.)

ANNUAL REPORT 2015 - 2016

CONTENTS: 

Section 1 Chair’s Introduction: Mr. Kevin Ryan, Chair of SACRE

Section 2 Religious Education 

Section 3                Locally Agreed Syllabus 

Section 4                         Collective Worship

Section 5                                                 Links with other Agencies 

Section 6                                                 Other issues

Southend on Sea’s  ‘Pier at Twilight’ 
(Reproduced with permission of John Pye, SBC Volunteer, 

taken from the 100 year-old Cliff Lift on Southend Seafront) 

Appendices

Appendix 1 Terms of Reference and Constitution

Appendix 2 Membership of Southend-on-Sea SACRE

7

5



Page 2 of 12

1: INTRODUCTION FROM THE CHAIR OF SACRE:  KEVIN RYAN

Once again I am pleased to introduce the Annual Report on the work of the Southend-on-Sea SACRE. 
It has been an exciting time to be involved in Religious Education both locally and nationally.

The Borough’ Agreed Syllabus, Improving Learning Together in Religious Education, is now well 
established within schools following its launch in 2013.  Feedback from schools is largely positive 
with teachers reporting that they value the flexibility in the syllabus that enables them to plan and 
deliver RE that is relevant to the contexts of their schools. A borough wide survey of primary and 
secondary teachers and leaders of RE, designed and analysed by our RE Adviser, Frances Neil, has 
shown that a light touch review of the Syllabus involving teachers’ input would be welcomed and will 
take place through 2016-17 through the locally-held RE Subject networks which Frances leads.   The 
Agreed Syllabus sets out to develop a range of skills and ideas including, reflection, empathy, 
creativity and the ability to engage in investigation, analysis, interpretation, evaluation and synthesis. 
The planned review will support SACRE’s decisions when the Locally Agreed Syllabus is formally 
reviewed in 2018. 

SACRE members believes that well-taught RE which can improve the wellbeing of all students and 
makes an important contribution to good community relations and to students’ spiritual, moral, social 
and cultural development.   By exploring questions of identity and community and helping young 
people to gain a deeper understanding about themselves and others it also promoting British Values, a 
key focus of the Borough and the Department for Education. 

It is good to see that the network groups for both primary and secondary teachers are flourishing 
following Frances’ hard work maintaining contact with Lead Teachers, promptly answering their 
queries sent by email or raised at meetings, encouraging teachers to attend the networks, preparing 
good agendas, planning CPD and conferences and sharing resources, important updates and 
documents with network members. 

SACRE funded teachers to attend high quality CPD and paid for a primary/secondary joint Pupil and 
Teacher Conference to take place during the year.  Both are reported in full, later in this document.

As RE is a statutory requirement for all children in full time education, under the provision of the 
1944 Education Act, part of the SACRE’s responsibility is to support and monitor the provision of RE 
for all the Borough’s pupils and students in full time education. The analysis of external in 2016 
examination results, GCSE, AS Level and A Level, presented in this report (provided only recently by 
the DFE) highlight some changes from the 14-15 results. The analysis of examination results from 
summer term 2016 presented in this report highlights some considerable achievements by students 
and schools. 

The revised GCSE, AS and A Level Religious Studies examination specifications, implemented from 
September 2016, hamper our ability to compare and track performance across year-groups and across 
schools beyond summer 2017.  This is unfortunate as we believe much is being undertaken by RE 
Leads and schools to ensure student achievement is improved and those improvements are sustained 
through high quality teaching evidenced through the achievement of students in their RS 
examinations.   
 
Governors are reminded of their responsibility to ensure that RE is delivered in accordance with 
statutory requirements. SACRE also encourages a strong Spiritual, Moral, Social, and Cultural ethos 
to be evident within all our schools. 

There continues to be a number of significant national reports published during the last year, all of 
which highlight the need for high quality training to enable teachers to teach RE that is engaging and 
effective. SACRE members have discussed and noted the issues raised in the reports and their 
implications for the Borough’s schools.

8



Page 3 of 12

I am taking this opportunity to thank Marilyn Larkin for her membership of and support for SACRE 
over the last 6 years.  Her contributions to the RE in the borough has been highly regarded, not only 
through her work on SACRE, but as an excellent teacher and Lead Teacher in RE for many years 
within borough schools.  I would also like to thank the Vice Chair of SACRE, Councillor Clive 
Pegler, who has also retired from SACRE.  Clive was a dedicated, well-informed and supportive 
member of SACRE and we shall miss his contributions to our work. 

This report provides an overview of RE in the Borough’s schools and the work of SACRE. I 
commend it to you.

Kevin Ryan, Chair, SACRE, Southend on Sea Borough Council  
26th January 2017 

2. RELIGIOUS EDUCATION (RE)

2.1   STANDARDS IN RELIGIOUS EDUCATION
The SACRE continues to fulfil its responsibility to monitor standards and quality in RE (Religious 
Education) Collective Worship and spiritual development. Examination results at GCSE, A/S and A 
level are monitored and reported to SACRE as part of the Borough’s overall monitoring and 
evaluation of standards.  

2.2 Analysis of GCSE, AS and ‘A’ level results for 2016
There are again some extremely impressive achievements in RS at GCSE, AS and A level 
examinations which reflect the continued high quality of teaching. School entry policies for full 
GCSE Religious Studies (RS) differ from school to school, depending on the arrangements for 
statutory RE within the Key Stage 4 curriculum and the provision of RS within the school’s AS and 
‘A’ Level examination option choices. 

Nine out of 12 Southend schools entered students for GCSE RS (Full Course) and two further Schools 
entered almost 100% of their students in to either the Full or Short GCSE Course. There were no 
entries from Futures Community College, Chase or Belfairs Academies in 2016. This situation would 
bear investigation in case those schools are in breach of their statutory requirements, or if external 
factors are involved, with which SACRE could offer support. It is to be celebrated, however, that four 
schools entered close to 100% of students for the full GCSE in 2016, compared with three doing so in 
2015. 

Cohort numbers ranged from 11 students (just 5.64%) at Cecil Jones College from a NOR of 195, to 
149 out of a cohort of 152 at St Thomas More High, although the school’s Catholicity will obviously 
have been a positive influence on subject availability and choice, as in St Bernard’s High School, 
where 100% of the cohort were also entered.   

The comments on achievement that follow will clearly be affected by the overall patterns of entry 
which vary considerably between schools.  The selective nature of four of the schools/academies skew 
the borough’s figures somewhat and therefore comparisons between schools must be considered with 
this in mind.  Students also transfer to different schools for 6th Form so tracking of cohorts from 
GCSE to GCE AS / A level examinations, is not possible.  

2.21 Achievement at GSCE Religious Studies
GCSE Full Course 

9



Page 4 of 12

 49% of students sat a GCSE course in Religious Studies which is slightly above the national 
figure of 44%

 Overall 82% of those pupils achieved A*-C grades at GSCE, which is well above the national 
figure for all schools of 71.5% and 99% achieved A* - G grades which is above the national 
figures of 97.8%. 

 Four schools, exceeded the national picture significantly with 100% of students achieving A*- 
C grades. 

 Passes at A*- G from 98.3% - 100% achieved by all schools, which is an average across all 
schools of 99.4%, this, again, is slightly above the national average of 97.8% and is to be 
celebrated 

 Students from six schools including non-selective Shoeburyness High achieved 100% in A*- 
G grades with students from two further schools achieving 98.6% and 97.3% which is to be 
celebrated

 Almost all students entered by Cecil Jones achieved A*-C grades, but the small cohort skews 
the percentages due to the ‘weighting’ for each student to be less impressive at 90% their 
achievement should not be underestimated and is solely due to small numbers entered
 

 Achievement at the higher grades (A*/A) for GCSE RS, at 42.5% (A* @17.6+ A @ 24.9) is 
particularly good being significantly above the corresponding national figures of 29.6% (A* 
@10.6% + A@ 19.0%). These are also above A*+A results for 2015

 These figures for A*/A grades are equalled at Shoeburyness High and exceeded, significantly 
so, by three of the four ‘selective’ schools/academies where 100% of students achieved A*/A 
grades, albeit in a cohorts of 25% of student Numbers on Role (NOR)

 The non-selective school Eastwood Academy is again notable for entering almost the entire 
cohort of students of 147 with 75.7% of students achieving A*- C grades, which is above the 
figure for the national average of 71.5%
  

 St Thomas More and St Bernard’s High Schools who also entered almost entire cohorts and 
students’ results exceeded the national scores for A-G grades, with 97.3% and 100%, 
respectively

 It is disappointing that Belfair’s Academy whose student achieved impressive results in 2015 
(a pass rate of 85% at A*- C grades: 100% on A*-G) did not enter any students into RS 
GCSE Short or Full Course. 

Governing Bodies will generally want to satisfy themselves that:

 the statutory requirements for schools to provide Religious Education for all students are 
being met at Key Stage 3 and 4.  

10



Page 5 of 12

 the overall proportion of students being entered for any accreditation in RS at GCSE is 
appropriate given the number of students on role in the Borough (NOR) is declared as 2053 
and number of entries (NOE) is declared as just 727.

 
 that school websites state the school’s arrangements for teaching RE, whether or not the 

school / academy follows the local agreed syllabus or stating which other such syllabus it 
follows:  

o In their curriculum information school websites, in general, secondary schools 
include only a minimal mention, if any, of RE provision for KS 3 students and for KS 
4 students who are not following RS examination syllabi.  

o Generally if secondary schools do mention RS it is as part of their examination 
syllabi

 that, while good teaching is being received by a small percentage of a school’s cohort perhaps 
more students could be encouraged to choose RS as an option:

o To take advantage of 
this good teaching 

 understandably, some 
learners will not be entered for examinations in RS for a variety of reasons, 
however, SACRE should satisfy itself that all learners’ entitlement to receive 
Religious Education is being met at Key Stages 3 – 5    

2.22 GCSE Short Course in Religious Studies
Three selective schools entered students for the GCSE Short Course and their students results were 
impressive with 100% pass rate (A* - D) achieved by students.  The GCSE Short Courses are no 
longer counted in a school’s accountability measures, i.e. the A*-C GCSE pass rate. Therefore many 
schools will be phasing out short courses.

2.23 Achievement at GCE Advanced Level in Religious Studies

GCE AS Level Religious Studies examinations:
 

 Achievement in AS Level in the borough’s schools was very good, being well above the 
national levels, with 33% achieving an A grade and 31% achieving a B grade, compared with 
national figures of 20.4% and 24.6%, respectively  

o Thus, achievement in the borough’s schools across grades A-B at 63.8% was also  
well above national figures of 45% 

 Achievement in grades A-E at 93.7% was just above national figures of 92.7%  
 In 2016, the same nine schools entered students for AS Level RS, as in 2015, although cohort 

sizes in five of these schools were smaller in 2016 than in 2015.  

GCE ‘A’ Level Religious Studies examinations:
 

11



Page 6 of 12

There is a very positive picture for A Level across the borough. Nine schools entered students for A 
Level RS, a total of 149 students. The number of students in the cohorts varied from 5 to 30 and the 
number of student entries rose both locally and nationally. 

 Overall, students in Southend schools achieved above the national figure at A*/A grades with 
28.2% achieving this compared with the national figure of 24.1%.

 Similarly, 57% students achieved A* - B grades, compared with national scores of 54%.  
 In seven out of nine schools 100% of students achieved A*- E grades, including the small 

cohorts of the non-selective schools: Belfairs Academy and both Cecil Jones and 
Shoeburyness High School, which both entered much larger cohorts than in 2015. 

 Seven schools achieved a pass rate of 100% but included within that figure 28.2% achieved a 
pass at ‘A* - A grade which above the national figure of 24.1%   

 At Southend High School for Boys, in a cohort of 19 students, 89.5% achieved grades A*- B, 
Westcliff High school for Girls 88.9% achieved A*-B grades and Westcliff High School for 
Boys achieved 83.3% achieved grades A*-B, all of which were significantly above the 
national figure of 54.4%.

 A*- B grades exceeded national figures in six of the nine schools including St Bernard’s and 
Southend High for Girls.

 Belfairs and Cecil Jones Academies are to be congratulated for providing A Level examination 
courses, successfully, for very small cohorts. 

Governors should consider the following points:

 Where number of students entered for GCE A level was small (and smaller than their cohort) 
e.g. Belfairs, Cecil Jones, Futures, what provision is made for meeting the statutory 
requirements to teach RE to all pupils? 

o This question applies in all the schools where the GCE cohort is less than the full 
cohort of students in that particular year. 

o There is no Religious Education provision stated on the websites of most secondary 
schools in the Borough  

2.3 COMPLAINTS CONCERNING RE
No formal complaints were made about religious education under the local statutory complaints 
procedure during 2015 - 16.

2.4 WITHDRAWAL FROM RE 
The are no figures provided from schools in respect of withdrawal from Religious Education within 
the responses to the borough-wide survey of schools undertaken in 2015 – 16.  

3.0 AGREED SYLLABUS for RELIGIOUS EDUCATION

The Borough’s Agreed Syllabus has been in place since its launch in September 2013 and is used in 
all non-faith primary schools and academies and the majority of secondary schools and academies for 
Key Stage 3.  

12



Page 7 of 12

During the academic year 2015 – 2016 information gathered via the survey of all the Borough’s 
schools and continuing consultations and discussions with Lead Teachers attending the RE Networks, 
indicated that teachers and schools continue to be pleased with and to use the Local Syllabus.  

3.1 TEACHER TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR RELIGIOUS EDUCATION AND SOCIAL, MORAL, 
SPITIRUAL AND CULTURAL EDUCAITON 

Ben Madison, an experienced RE teacher/head of department continued to support the secondary RE 
network, which met termly with and good numbers attended throughout the year. The number of 
teachers who attended the Primary Network in 2015 – 16, led by Frances Neil, increased throughout 
the year.  Membership of the Teachers’ networks has resulted in a core-group of teachers who either 
attend each term’s meeting or share attendance with a member of their departmental team or who 
keep contact with the adviser for ongoing support and guidance.  

SACRE funded a group of primary and secondary RE Lead Teachers 
and SACRE members to attend the National Association of Teachers 
of Religious Education (NATRE) “Strictly RE” Teachers’ Conference 
in London, to develop our teaching skills further, share good practice 
and ideas and build our awareness of national initiatives. It is 
heartening to experience the dedication and professionalism of 
teachers in our Borough who gave up their Saturday to attend such 
excellent Continuing Professional Development opportunities. 
Southend’s RE Advisor, by Frances Neil, worked hard to organise and 
coordinate the trip and encourage so many of the Borough’s lead 
teachers to attend.  

Marilyn Larkin (right) in a workshop with Fiona Moss (from RE Today)

3.2 SACRE funded a Conference entitled “Respect for All Pupils of Southend”.  

The conference was led by Julia Diamond-Conway and Kate Christopher from REToday and involved 
primary pupils from Years 5 and 6 working with secondary students from Years 7 and 8. This was 
also a CPD opportunity for teachers of RE who observed Kate and Julia’s question and answer 
approach. 

13



Page 8 of 12

Julia (Left) and Kate (right) with an attentive audience of 90 pupils and students from 
Southend schools.

All present were immensely proud of the pupils, students and staff of Southend’s schools as the 
children’s RE knowledge, debating and discussion skills, their cooperative working, and behaviour 
were exemplary.  They maintained their attention spans for the whole day and produced some 
outstanding work and, equally as important, they and their teachers made friends across schools and 
the different phases of education.  Teachers were also able to meet Lead RE colleagues from other 
schools and other phases of education, some for the first time. 

The conference was a very successful event and 
included a group of 10 schools seeking enhanced 
Healthy Schools Accreditation through the Healthy 
Schools Partnership. SACRE’s Chair, Kevin Ryan, 
and member Marilyn Larkin, attended to share in this 
exciting day.  Over 90 pupils and students from a 
number of primary and secondary schools in the 
borough and their teachers attended the day. 

The children worked together in mixed age groups, 
with Yr. 7 and 8 students supporting the Yr. 5 and 6 
pupils during the activities.  

Lisa Holloway (SBC Healthy Schools Partnership) and 
pupils listen thoughtfully 
and attentively during the Respect for All Conference

The benefits of the day were not confined to the subject matter of respect, and celebration of diversity 
and zero-tolerance of bullying and racism.  It brought benefits for transition between primary and 
secondary schools for both pupils and their teachers.  Lisa Holloway filmed the event to show at the 
Healthy Schools Partnership’s Accreditation meetings where it was very positively received and all 

14



Page 9 of 12

the schools were successful in receiving their accreditation.   Lisa attended a SACRE meeting where 
the film was also shown to members and she shared the positive outcomes for all involved. 

Lyn Campbell (pictured right) and Nicky Howard (pictured left) attended with their Yr. 6 pupils. 

Nicky Howard, of Temple Sutton Primary School said:

This is such a good opportunity to meet teachers from the schools our children move to in 
their Yr. 7.   As a Year 6 teacher it’s been so good to be able to spend time with colleagues 
from the secondary schools and to get to know each other and share our views and have 
time to discuss the differences in the RE curriculum.

Nicky followed this work with a similar pupil conference at her own school to which she invited 
parents and other members of staff.  The head teacher of a primary school commented upon the 
quietness throughout the conference room as the children and students of different ages worked 
together in small groups to represent their work upon ‘our respect for others’ in a craft-based activity.  
One could have ‘heard a pin drop’ as they all planned and made items to represent their learning from 
the morning’s more conventional debate and discussion sessions. 

Lyn Campbell, Edwards Hall Primary School, reflected on the benefits of transition, as well as the RE 
learned: 

 Some of my pupils have met Yr 7s and Yr 8s from the schools they are hoping to attend 
next year and this has broken down barriers and fears they have about going there.  They 
feel much happier that they know someone in the playground and might see a friendly face 
especially in their first days.

A Year 6 pupil said he’d had “a fantastic day” his friends agreed nodding their approval, adding 
excitedly:  

“we got to make things in RE and discuss those things we find hard (to understand) – 
about people who are different to us and think and know different things.  It helps us to 
understand each other – y’know – in the playground – in the street – how we’re just the 
same and need to look after each other.” 

Some pupils composed and sang a “rap” and designed a very imaginative CD cover for their song 
(below). 

15



Page 10 of 12

The “rap” includes these 
lines:

 “Everyone should be respected       
                             in this community
Nobody rejected; let’s all live in unity.” 

Continuing Professional Development through Teacher Networks

Specialist advice and support is available for schools through training sessions held during the 
Primary and Secondary termly network meetings. These are affiliated to NATREs “Local RE Groups 
Network”. 
Ben Madison led the secondary and Frances Neil led primary RE Networks and shared with RE Lead 
Teachers, the following:

 Regular NATRE Local Group Power Point presentations, Newsletters, and resources 
 Details of the RE “Webchat” Program (a question and answer/ ideas sharing broadcast in 

which any teacher can participate  
 Information of local and national importance (such as circulating the RE Survey, information 

about the RE Curriculum and Ofsted updates) 
 Details of discussion points (such as examination reforms and legalities surrounding 

curriculum provision)
 Resources that are available such as details of visiting speakers / places of interest and 

worship to visit
 Details of Continuing Professional Development and training opportunities, such as the 

Holocaust Memorial Education Trust training days, NATRE training events
 An opportunity to share ideas, resources and teaching points 

16



Page 11 of 12

4.0 COLLECTIVE WORSHIP

4.1 MONITORING 
SACRE has highlighted the need to monitor provision of RE within schools for pupils not studying 
RE at GCSE and GCE Level and the provision and quality of collective worship in schools within the 
Borough. Frances Neil has attended worship in two of the borough’s primary schools and found 
standards to be high and pupils attentive and interested.  In both schools the daily worship was well-
planned and supportive of the borough’s aims for respect, promoting British Values and celebrating 
diversity.  

4.2 TRAINING
There has been no training for schools on collective worship during the year.

4.3 DETERMINATIONS
There were no applications for determinations to alter the character of collective worship for all or 
some pupils in a particular school during 2015-16.  

4.4 COMPLAINTS CONCERNING COLLECTIVE WORSHIP
No formal complaints were made about collective worship under the local statutory complaints 
procedure during 2015-16. 

5 LINKS WITH OTHER AGENCIES

5.1 NATIONAL

Southend SACRE is a member of the National Association of SACREs (NASACRE).  Frances Neil is 
a member of NATRE and the Association of RE Inspectors, Assessors and Consultants (ARIAC). 
SACRE has been delighted to have been supported by NATRE and REToday, whose National 
Adviser, Kate Christopher, has attended SACRE meetings as an observer and many of the RE 
networks to support them in their work.  SACRE has also been supported by The South Essex 
Teaching School Alliance (SETSA) who have provided accommodation and refreshments for the 
termly RE network meetings. 

Nicky Howard, a local Primary teacher, from Temple Sutton Primary School has contributed an 
article for RE Today, a national magazine for RE teachers. 

5.2 LOCAL
During the year SACRE meetings have been held at local schools and places of worship.  Meetings in 
schools have included contributions from the pupils and teaching staff followed by opportunities for 
members of SACRE to discuss the provision for RE and collective worship.  Members of SACRE 
were treated to a walk round Edwards Hall Primary School, led by pupils in Year six, accompanied by 
their TA,  who read their excellent poems showing their thoughts and fears about being a refugee and 
showed their recent RE work which had been displayed in the school’s main corridor.   

In the same school SACRE members visited the Foundation Stage / Early Years setting and enjoyed a 
question and answer session with very articulate and enthusiastic five-year-old pupils who, supported 
teachers and teacher assistants, excitedly shared their RE work and classroom display.  

As detailed above SACRE also linked with the Borough’s ‘Healthy Schools Partnership’ and their 
Difference and Diversity Group meetings of which Frances Neil attended regularly.  The ‘Healthy 

17



Page 12 of 12

Schools’ Lead has attended SACRE and spoken of the programme for schools applying for ‘Healthy 
Schools’ Enhanced Accreditation who attended the “Respect for All Pupils of Southend” Conference 
as part of their ‘evidence base’ for the application process. There is more detail about this event in the 
previous pages of the report. SACRE is grateful to Leigh Road Baptist Church for providing the 
venue for the Respect for All Conference. 

6 OTHER ISSUES

6.1 BUDGET
The Local Authority has delegated a reasonable sum of money to SACRE to enable the group to 
function independently and effectively. The funds are allocated carefully to support SACRE to meet 
and continue its work effectively.  Expenditure included clerking, national association affiliation fees 
and incidental expenses, for example, venue costs.  

As previously discussed during the 15-16 academic year SACRE funded the following:

 places for teachers, including the Chair of SACRE, Kevin Ryan, a member of SACRE, 
Marilyn Larkin and the adviser to attend the excellent National Conference, held by 
NATRE, in January 2016.  

 other CPD opportunities through the RE networks, described above, aimed at 
supporting student and pupil achievement in the borough’s schools.   

 the “Respect for All” RE Pupil and Teacher RE conference led by RE Today which was 
held at Leigh Road Baptist Church which proved to be a very successful choice as a 
venue.  

6.2 ATTENDANCE AND MEMBERSHIP of SACRE 

It is pleasing to report that some historical membership issues have been successfully resolved during 
the year and members’ attendance at SACRE meetings was again consistent and supportive. SACRE 
was pleased to welcome new members at the beginning of the year.   
   

APPENDICES

APPENDIX A
CONSTITUTION, TERMS OF REFERENCE AND 

APPENDIX B
MEMBERSHIP OF SOUTHEND SACRE FOR 2015-16  

18



Page 1 of 3

Report from Frances Neil for Southend on Sea SACRE                  28/2/17
 
In my role as RE Adviser and to support SACRE (referring to Items in Minutes of 28/9/16) 
I have addressed the following:

Matters Arising in the Minutes of 28/9/16

Item 5 : (Links to Point 7) 
Further work took place during the school term to identify gaps in the provision of RE in schools.  
This is further covered in Point 7 (below).

Item 7: Survey Analysis
This continues but work has been interrupted while completing the Annual Report and the Accord 
Application but should be available at the next meeting with current updates as many changes are 
underway since the information about “compliance” and Ofsted was published (see point 5 above) and 
then shared across the Borough via the invites to both Secondary and Primary Lead Teachers Network 
meetings. 

There is work still ongoing to ascertain the full picture such as reviewing the information shared on 
School Websites.  Lead RE Teachers find the networks a great support while bringing such 
information, with authority, to their Leadership Teams. Many Lead teachers are still looking to use the 
Locally Agreed Syllabus rather than invest in their own or another while undergoing the process of 
conversion to Academy status which is also altering the local picture of RE provision. 
 
Item 9: SACRE Training 
Robert Harris attended the Inter-Faith Group Meeting.  I am to attend the next meeting to be held at 
4pm on 23/02/17.

Item 9.2:
I continue to attend the meetings of the Difference and Diversity Group of the Healthy Schools 
partnership to maintain our links with this worthwhile group.  I am still intending to arrange a repeat 
of the Respect for All Pupils of Southend Conference however, budgeting difficulties may have stilted 
progress. 

Agenda 28/9/16 

RE Advisers Report

The DfE were later than usual in publishing their data which were shared with me in mid-December 
2016.  The Annual Report has been compiled and contains analysis of the DfE official data and that 
collected from RE Lead Teachers concerning the RE provision in their schools. The AR has a separate 
agenda item for this meeting. 

I completed the Accord Inclusivity Award Application form which has been circulated as part of the 
SACRE papers.  This was a very substantial part of my term’s work and drew praise, being 
commended for the following: 

The judges

 are grateful for the efforts gone to, in applying for the Award, and praise the efforts that the 
SACRE is making:

 the support the SACRE received from Councillors as expressed by 7 of them serving on 
Committee D

 the SACRE's proactive scrutiny in making sure local schools provided RE at KS4

19

6



Page 2 of 3

 the wide breadth of training offered - with the SACRE's Annual Teacher/Pupil Conference, 10 
teachers having received the Culham St Gabriel’s "Excellent RE" Course, 

 the SACRE having further funded training events on 'Respect for All Learners' and British 
Values'

The email went on to say, however:
 

 “I regret to write that the Southend SACRE has not been placed by the Judges in this year's 
Inclusivity Award. Thank you again to you for submitting the nomination. Accord hopes to 
publish a short report in the spring, highlighting some of the innovative practices that the 
2017 Award has discovered. We hope these will provide positive messages about the work 
SACREs can do and are doing.”

I emailed asking if there was any further feedback that I could share with the SACRE at their 
forthcoming meeting in February and was told that the decisions were not yet available. 

I then received a request from the Accord with the following:

 No criticisms of the SACRE were recorded, so I am afraid I do not have anything I can offer in 
this regard.  

 Accord has decided to submit the short report on the 2017 Award that it will produce to the 
recently launched independent Commission on Religious Education 
<http://religiouseducationcouncil.org.uk/commission-on-re>  which the Religious Education 
Council is supporting. 

…and asking:

 Would it be possible for Accord to also submit Southend SACRE's 2017 Award nomination 
to the Commission? Some of the Commissioners may not be overly familiar with the work 
of SACREs. 

After a brief discussion I have been assured that the submission was in fact, an excellent document 
and would be shared within a highly positive light.  I will report more of the feedback in due time. 

Secondary and Primary School lead Teachers RE Networks 

These took place at WHSGs Secondary, 25/1/17: Primary, 1/02/17. The dates are published on the 
SETSA Website. 

Both Secondary and Primary School lead Teachers RE Networks meetings were very successful with 
new members representing a wider group of schools attending each. The networks have a high priority 
on Lead Teachers’ agendas and those who could not attend shared with me the reasons (always the 
timetabling of other school meetings such as parent meetings) and they often: 

 add agenda items 
 request that I ask those who do meet to consider questions they pose
 ask for advice for areas they met in their work, especially in leadership meetings
 ask to be included in any email follow up / minutes  

Teachers keep in touch with me and each other between meetings which has grown into a thriving 
digital support network.  I often receive requests for information, guidance and support in the weeks 
between meetings, to source documentation, often for their staff / staff and governor meetings, 
recommend or find resources and ideas, especially for visiting speakers, venues and places of worship.

20

http://religiouseducationcouncil.org.uk/commission-on-re


Page 3 of 3

The next meeting will be a joint Primary Secondary meeting and the agenda includes discussing 
transition from Year 6 to Year 7 as leads found this very interesting when they met at the NATRE 
Conference and wished to continue their discussions.   

Continuing Professional Development 

On January 28th 2017 a group of 9 teachers from Southend schools attended “Strictly RE” the national 
conference hosted in London by the National Association of Teachers of Religions Education. This 
was a great event and our group was the largest contingent from any one Local Authority and, once 
again, I believe, was the only group funded by its local SACRE.  The pleasure and excitement derived 
from a complete day of such high quality continuing professional development was immense with 
speakers, published writers, inspectors and presenters of note, seminars, workshops, resources and 
networking available under one roof.  

Many primary teachers said this was the only CPD they receive all year and feel it contributes greatly 
to their ability to support their schools colleagues and pupils well. They wished their thanks to be 
shared with members of SACRE for providing this opportunity and for valuing their work in such a 
practical and supportive way.  They also want to go again next year!

Frances Neil (February, 2017) 

21



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 28th September 2016 and Matters Arising
	5 SACRE Annual Report 2015/16
	6 SACRE Advisors Update Report

